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Dedication

The Industry Historical Society dedicates this history of the
Town of Industry to three individuals who have contributed to
the growth of the society: Ernest Hilton of Starks, the 1late
Edith Martin of Industry, and Robert C. (Bud) Pratt of
Augusta, Montana.

Ernie has given generously of his time and talent both on perso-
nal and professional levels. Without his efforts the Industry
Historical Society could not have achieved the status that al-
lowed us to accept the donation of a historical building in town.

Edith was a longtime member of the society. Heving belonged to
the Needham, Mass. Historical Society, she was quick to share
ideas with our society. Her unfailing humor, common sense, and
courage in meeting life's adversities have been an inspiration
to all of us.

Bud helped to make a dream come true for society members when
he chose to donate the former Goodridge Corner School to our
organization. We appreciate his interest in preserving this
link with the town's past and providing a home for the society.

An Industry Historical Society Historical Document.
Copyright 2003 by the Industry Historical Society, Inc.
Reproduction for commercial purposes restricted without
advance permission.
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Preface

The Industry Historical Society has long considered carrying on
with the town's history where the monumental work of William
Collins Hatch left off in 1893. The upcoming bicentennial of
the town seemed a good time to take a tiny step in that direct-
ion. Members chose to do a picture book with a healthy dose

of text as the best compromise for format.

Book Committee members have tried hard to be accurate. However,
mistakes are a bane of life. Any errors or omissions are un-
intentional.

The society would like to thank all who have donated items to
it in the past. Many of those were of great help in the prep-
aration of this book. It would also like to thank those who
gave of their time, memories, and photos and documents used in
this book.

Photo/Document Donors: Pam and Delmont Hutchinson, Elizabeth
Brackett Rowell, Peg Morrill, Carolyn Balsam, Nancy and Bill
Johnson, Helen Foster, Bob Burton, Vivian Kennedy, Charlotte
Durrell, Scott Hall, Hazel Gordon, Ronald and Lois Greenleaf,
Betty Hodgkins, Lester and Helen Frost, Phyllis and Almon
Watson, Maria James, Jerry and Gloria Lorey, Beverly and George
Beale, Edith (deceased) and George Martin, Ronald Frazier, Bob
and Christine Geisser, Ron and Betty Wing, Rev. John and Jane
Tolman, Ted and Kay Tracy, Barbara Titcomb, Patricia Coro,
Ralph and Myra Claflin, Christine Megalhaes, Sayward and Gerry
Hackett, the Dean Family, Harold and Jeanne (deceased) Nutting,
Helen and Donald Rackliff, and Barbara Hutchinson.

Helen J. Foster, Editor and Chief Writer

Book Committee: Peg Morrill, Carolyn Balsam, Bob Burton, Nancy
and Bill Johnson, Chris Deon, and Maria James
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Introduction

Industry is a civil division encompassing two villages. 1In 1798
Peter West erected a 1log cabin upon the site of the future village
of West Mills. Close to that cabin he also built grist- and saw-
mills on a nearby stream. Capt. West was the first person to

gain title to his property (1803) in this area.

Allens Mills (formerly Gower's Mills) joined Industry in 1813, 10
years after the town was incorporated, when the inhabitants of that
part of New Sharon successfully petitioned the Massachusetts General
Court for inclusion into the Town of Industry.

In 1802 the Plantation of Industry consisted of part of Smithfield
and all of Industry and Mercer. How the plantation received its
name is debatable. William Allen, an early settler and author of
a town history published in 1869, claims that his father Capt.
William Allen suggested the name of Industry in 1799 at a militia
meeting, that it was adopted by the militia, and kept as a town
name when the western part of the plantation was incorporated.

The more popular version of naming credits Betsy Thompson, wife of
Capt. John Thompson, as suggesting the area be named for the
"character of its people."

Some 180 years earlier (1622) Industry was merely a very small

part of a large land grant to Sir Fernando Gorgas and Capt. John
Mason. Known as the Patent of Laconia, the grant lay between

the Merrimack and Sagadahock (Kennebec to Merrymeeting Bay) Rivers.

Seven years later Mason and Gorgas divided the grant, Mason receiv-
ing the section west of the Piscataqua River (eventually named New
Hampshire), Gorgas taking the remainder. In 1639 a new crown
charter changed the Gorgas territory's name from New Somersetshire
to the Province of Maine. Massachusetts Bay Colony took control

of this land after Gorgas died. Another charter united the colo-
nies of Plymouth, Massachusetts Bay, the Province of Maine, and
land east of it to the St. Croix River during the reign of

William and Mary.

Some 40 years later Antipas Boies, Edward Tyng, Thomas Brattle,
and John Winslow purchased a strip of land running 15 miles
wide on each side of the Kennebed¢ River and 30 miles long north
to south from the Colony of New Plymouth. By 1749 their heirs
considered settling this land. 1In 1753 they and new members

formed a corporation called the "Proprietors of the Kennebec
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Purchase from the late Colony of New Plymouth." Although that
was their legal title, the corporation was also known as the
Plymouth Company and their lands were called the Plymouth Patent.

By now several land companies claimed portions of this territory,
the matter finally being settled by legal means. The Plymouth
Patent boundaries were not set until 1789 when surveyors placed
the northwest corner 80 rods (1,320 feet) east of the northeast
corner of Farmington. This action located the Plymouth Patent
bounds near the shore of Clearwater Pond. As compensation for
lands given to settlers elsewhere, the Commonwealth of Massa-
chusetts turned over to the Plymouth Company a strip of land
one and one-half miles wide and 30 miles long. This act ex-
tended the northern limits of what would become the Town of
Industry to the township of New Vineyard's southern 1line.

Unfortunately, no surveyor now divided these lands into lots

for settlement by interested parties. At the end of the American
Revolution many former soldiers streamed into the District of
Maine and occupied lots without permission from land proprietors.
Such was the case in what would become the Town of Industry.

Levi Greenleaf arrived in 1787, Peter Witham a year later, to
take up residence on Plymouth Patent lands. Jabez Norton, Sr.
settled on the Mile-and-a-Half Strip in 1795. Others soon

joined them.

By 1802 both the Plymouth Company proprietors and Francis Cabot
Lowell of Boston (owner of the Mile-and-a- Half Strip) decided
that the situation was getting out of hand. Surveyors were dis-
patched to partition the land into lots. Lemuel Perham, Jr. and
Cornelius Norton handled these jobs respectively for the Ply-
mouth Company and Lowell. Whenever possible lots were laid out
to include improvements.

Of the two land owners Lowell was the more reasonable, some-
times allowing settlers to buy bhelow cost for their lots. The
Plymouth Company proprietors proved tougher. They forced 31
settlers to appear hefore a commission in Augusta in 1802. Not
only did the proprietors claim land rights, they sometimes
claimed ownership of buildings and other settler improvements.
Two-thirds of the settlers obtained deeds to their holdings by
paying what William Collins Hatch, author of a town history pub-
lished in 1893, termed "exorbitant prices." The Unfortunate
left Industry and sought housing elsewhere.

In 1803 the inhabitants of Industry Plantation petitioned the
General Court of Massachusetts that the part of the plantation
lying west of Starks and "commonly known as the back settlement"
be incorporated. The General Court ruled favorable and Gov.



Caleb Strong signed this petition on June 20, 1803.

A group of residents in northern New Sharon also petitioned the
General Court to be included in that incorporation. 1Industry
favored the idea. The Town of New Sharon fought the possibility
of losing territory and prevailed.

Since 1803 Industry has grown in size through the addition of 1land
from several towns: 2,000 acres, including the village of Gower's
Mills and a section of Clearwater Pond from New Sharon in 1813;
1,564 acres from New Vineyard in the Gore area in 1815; 400 acres
from Starks in 1822; 320 acres from Anson in 1823; and 7,000

acres from New Vineyard in 1844.

Six years later the trend reversed when Industry lost 782 acres
in the western part of the Gore to Farmington. Two years later
(1852) Industry gave up around 1,600 acres in the southern part
of town to New Sharon.

Those petitioning for a change of town usually stressed proximity
and accessibility to their proposed new home towns to influence
legislative bodies in their favor. The towns facing land loss
usually focused on the domino theory of lose one lot now, lose

10 tomorrow. Sometimes petitioners were rejected by towns they
wished to embrace. Such was the case in 1861 when Farmington
turned down Allens Mills' attempt to join it.

Bannock Mountain
looking west.
Clearwater Pond is
at the upper left.
In 1780 a surveyor
supposedly stopped
at the foot of the
mountain and baked
a bannock for his
meal, thus naming
the site. Photo
taken about 1955.
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Lemuel Perham, Jr. was hired by Plymouth Company proprietors to
set up the settlers' lots in 1802. As seen above he laid out 70
of them. Several years later the vacant parts of the patent were
surveyed and laid out for lots.
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‘ N JHEREAS the chiﬂaturc of this Common-

{
wealth, by a Refolution of the nineteenth day of February, one thou- |
fand eight hundred and two, made and provided for the quicting of Settlers on the <
common and undivided Lands belonging to the Proprietors of the Kenscheck-Pur- ‘
chaft from th late Colony of New-Plymeuth, and for cﬂabhﬂnng Commiffioners for
that purpofe, did Refolve as followss *

« That the Governor, with the confent of the Council, be, and be hereby is
¢ authorized and requefted to nominate and Commiflion three difinterefted perfons
« to adjuft and fettle all difputes between faid Proprietors. and any fuch perfon or 1

« perfons, their heirs and affigns, as have not fettled with faid Proprietors or their
« Agents.—And the faid Commifioners, in feutling the terms aforelaid, for quieting
“any fettler in the poffefion of one hundred acres of land laid out fo as to include
& his improvements, and be lealt injurious to adjoining lands, fhall have a reference
i  to three defcriptions of fettlers, viz. thofe fettled before the war with Great Britain,
|  fettlers during the war aforefaid, and fettlers fince that period, or to any perfon

- % whofe poffeffion has been transferred to claimants now in pofleffion.”

‘ And whereas Aommscod cDpwmort —ormee’ befons the war with Greas

} Britain, to wit, in the year of our Lord one thoufand feven hundred and. 7% ~<%
Here ——.  wasa fettler onalot of 77 4 o Lrnee Kporeatecnt “

acres of land, fituated in 7% m‘f/uf . the bounds whereof fhall be afcertained 1

and fettled by the faid Commiffioners ifi their report hereon, the fame lot being part

of the land held under the Proprictors of the faid Keancbeck Purchafe, ./’,,,/
. TN S a claimant now in poffzflion thereof. __

G T

Now, in purfuance of the faid R efolve and appointment, I,

v /M Agent 1o the Proprictors aforefaid, and the faid o

LBreresrs -~ —— doreferand fubmit it to the faid Commiffionens, they, or

" the major part of them, to fettle and declare the terms aforefaid, on which the faid

v Arrsecods Broscre —— . _ hisheirs and afligns fhall be quieted in the
of the faid lot, the faid Proprietors, by their Agent aforefaid, and the faid

Hrrsiiod ereire . their heirs, executors, adminiftrators and

affigns refpeQively holden and bound by the report of faid Commiflioners in the pre.

mifes, when made into the Secretary’s Office of faid Commonwealth, as direfted by

P e - " .

faid Refolve.
! 2 ;
; In Witnefs wheresf We bereto fet our bands this ‘/lyd'i-;ifa/ - deyeof ‘
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" the 7 day

Tms«/mﬂ/w’ ‘day ofg ;

the year of our Lorp one thoufand eight hundred and

for quieting the faid &F#rr2ecet “LT—ap
before menuoned Refolve, in the poﬂ'eﬂion of the faid lot of land, be

m//m./f’ Zi m”ﬂ&@/}

As by the plan and defcription figned b Lorrevel %yfp -

furveyor, hereto annexed, will appear, reference thereto being had.

WE, the Commiffioners before named, hgving met and

heard the parties, do fettle, declare, and report, that the Gid@/Zrreec? <
be quieted in the poffeffion of the above bounded premiles—To

have and to hold the fame to the MW PP PPt his
heirs and affigns, to his and their ufg forever, on the terms following, namely ;—
That the faid JM -z~ his heirs, executors, or
adminiftrators, fhall, on or before the “Z275557— day of « f},,ks__o
which will be in the year of our Lorb one thoufand eight hundred and _$4%. .5, —
pay to Tromas LinpaLr WiINTHROP, efquire, Treafurer of the faid Proprietors

of the Kesnebeck-Purchafg, or his fucceflor in faid office, the fum of ﬂz/z’:)
M dollan, — with intereft, from

en lhc fmd Proprictors, by their Agent,
make or caufe to be nnde to the hid @7 A b 22207 )
his heirs or afligns, a deed of the above defcribed premifes, whcreby he and they may

hold the fame iy Qee,ﬁmygc forever, ; /// % M

Gmmdtrwrﬁand; and Seals. Pé i
f9Q4 ;

/?‘///
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Samuel Brown, an
early settler in
Industry (1799)

was one of 31 in-
dividuals petition-
ing the Plymouth
Company for the
right to his proper-
ty (lot 19 as shown
on the Perham Plan
No. 4 appearing on
page 11). The pe-
tition shown on
page 12 is dated
Oct. 16, 1802.
Exactly two

months later he
received approval
to his claim from
those proprietors
as shown to the
left.



Geographical Features

Mountains-Picturesgue hills and mountains are found throughout
Industry. The highest elevation belongs to Boardman Mountain
(1,458 feet). Named for Herbert Boardman who settled at its bot-
tom in 1795, this mountain was part of the 7,000-acre parcel
ceded by New Vineyard to Industry in 1844. Over the years rumors
have remained strong that Boardman Mountain is an ancient volcano
still prone to rumble and grumble at times.

Nearby True Mountain (elevation 1,400 feet), sometimes called
Jimmie True Mountain for the farmer who lived at its base was
the site of a proposed nuclear waste dump in 1991. A majority
of citizens vigorously opposed the idea and formed an organi-
zation to fight the proposal. Later that year the site was
withdrawn from consideration because it did not meet standards.

The area in and around these two mountains thrived as the commu-
nity of Jerusalem. Mills and neighborhoods grew up only to dis-
appear around the end of World War I.

Bannock Mountain (elevation 1,230 feet) serves as a benchmark
for the United States Geologic Survey. Its shape resembles that
of a bannock (a flat oatmeal or barley cak%e cooked on a griddle).
Many people have enjoyed hiking or picnicking on it. During
World War II it was rumored to be the site from which a German
fellow living in Industry signaled information to a German sub-
marine out to sea. On one occasion (1884) it served as home to
a political celebration. Grover Cleveland had defeated James G.
Blaine in a presidential election. Nothing would do but his
followers haul a Civil War cannon from West Mills to the top of
Bannock. Hatch was an eyewitness out of concern for his father
who accompanied the revelers. After much exertion the deed was
done and the cannon was touched off. Alas, the blast was so
mighty (or the cannon so weakened by age) that the gun bhlew up.
Fortunately, no one suffered injury for this hilarity.

There are two Pico Ridges: Big Pico (elevation 1,138 feet) and
Little Pico (elevation 1,040 feet). The former draws many
hikers. Supposedly, an Indian maiden named Pico so mourned her
dead warrior lover that she leaped off the ridge (Leapoff Place).
Little Pico lies nearby. Recently, friends climbed this site and
placed a marker on it in memory of Brent Churchill, a Central
Maine Power linesman who lost his life while on the job in
Industry.

14



Bannock Mountain
as seen from
Center Cemetery.

The Leapoff Spot at
Big Pico Ridge.

True Mountain lies
to the left and
Boardman Mountain
is centered in
this 1995 photo.
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Oak ship keels
were cut during
the 1940s at
the Jimmie True
Place on True
Mountain (cent-
er). Photo
taken 1992.

Norton

Mountain
c. 1992
(right).

Norton Mountain (elevation 1,820 feet) straddles the Industry-
New Vineyard line in the Gore region ceded by New Vineyard to
Industry in 1815. Cornelius Norton was one of five original
settlers here and built a home on what is now called the Hiram
Norton Road in Industry. 1In the early 1900s Fred 0. Smith's
grandfather bought 200 acres (and original home site), granting
the late Hiram Norton and his mother free rent for life. Pres-
ently, Ron Burton and his wife live on the site. A Norton
descendent lives nearby.

16
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Streams-Water has always played an important role in Industry
citizens' lives, mostly for the sake of livelihood but occasion-
ally for recreation. Streams lure hikers and picnickers. Some-
times streams come eguipped with cascades or falls. One of the
most famous in this area is Rainbow Cascade on Mosher Hill. Prior
to 1850 this cascade lay in Industry. In that year Farmington
annexed the western part of the Gore and claimed this beauty spot.

Industry is still home to two cascades, one set in North Industry,
the other just off the West Mills Road near West Mills Village.

Lemon Stream (Lem-
mon's Stream on the
1861 Walling map) of-
fers rugged bkeauty

to the nature 1lover.
Follow the paved Rand
Road onto its dirt
section until it in-
tersects the stream.
The cascade is to the
right. Travel to New
Vineyard beyond this
point is for the ad-
venturous.

Sunderland Falls is
located on Renson
Brook across from
Hazel Gordon's home
on Route 148. During
high water season the
roar of the water
leads visitors to this
scenic spot. In low
water season one can
(with great caution)
walk over the falls'
stony bed.




Rainbow Cascade or The Cascades, as it
is more commonly called (right) :at-
tracts hikers, picnickers, nature
lovers, and school children. It is
located just over the Industry line in
Farmington. 1In 1815 Industry acquired
part of the Gore area from New Vine-
yard. Thirty five years later it

lost the western part of this acqui-
sition to Farmington.

Ponds-Clearwater Pond was once called
Horseshoe Pond because of its shape.
Early residents also referred to it as
Bull-Hoss Pond. By 1861 a Franklin
County mapr labeled it Clear Water
Pond. A few small brooks and springs
feed this pond which offers varied
recreational opportunities.

In 1804 Rufus Davis built grist- and sawmills at the pond's out-
let. James Gower arrived several years later, bought out Davis,
replaced Davis's wooden dam at the pond's outlet with a stone
one, and rebuilt the grist mill. For a while the village bore
his name (Gower's Mills). Then he sold his holdings to the Allen
Brothers (Benjamin and Newman) who were so successful that
Gower's Mills ktecame Allen's Mills (now Allens Mills).

Through the years many mills have produced a variety of products
(starch, shovel handles, wooden chairs, grist, and boards, to
name a few) in this village. Arthur I. Rackliff operated the
last mill in Allens Mills. The Skewer Manufacturing Company

was later moved to Farmington.

A baptism was held at
Clearwater Pond on

Sept. 15, 1918. Doris
Spinney was sprinkled.
Bernice and Doris Saw-
telle were submersed.
Bernice is shown in the
water. Groups of on-
lookers station them-
selves on the rock jetty
to watch the rroceedings.

18



Ellery Hawes stands
on the wharf at
Camp Liberty. Mr.
Damon sits in the
boat riding on the
waters of Clear-
water Pond.

Clearwater Pond
shows off its
horseshoe shape.
The view is from
Federal Row look-
ing towards Allens
Mills.

The wharf at
Clearwater Pond

in 1918. From

the wharf one
looks north toward
New Vineyard.

19
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Historical Sites

Thompson's Bridge-On March 22, 1991 Thompson's Bridge was placed on
the National Register of Historic Places because of its architec-
tural and historic significance. It is a somewhat rare example

of dry-laid masonry construction. John Thompson who lived just

up the hill (cellar hole) built the bridge about 1808. He also
built saw- and gristmills on Joshua Brook which flows under the
bridge. The road that passes over the bridge and the bridge

were originally intended to lie only in the town of Starks.
However, a change in the town boundary line a few years later set
the road and bridge partially in Industry. Thus, both towns claim
this historic site for their own.

The above photo is taken from the Starks side of Thompson's
Bridge in low water season. The man standing on the Industry
side of the bridge is Richard "Red" Morrill who served the
Town of Industry in many ways, including as deacon of Shorey
Chapel and vice president of the Industry Historical Society.



21

Powderhouse Rock-In its early days Industry formed its own mili-
tia as did neighboring towns. One of the less enjoyable duties
was stowing away the town's supply of powder, it usually being
necessary for some unlucky individual to store it in his home

or nearby. As few people were willing to accept such a danger-
ous task, the town was forced to find new Juarters for the powder.
On Dec. 26, 1825 it decided to store militia arms and ammunition
in a five-by-five foot brick building.

A committee of selectmen were chosen to oversee construction.
William Harvey's low bid of $19.75 won him the job which he
completed the following summer. The militia kXept its hazard-
ous materials here for nearly 20 years before disbanding. The
powderhouse continued standing for many years after that.

The powderhouse was erected atop a very large boulder situated
in Ezekiel Hinkley's field, only a few hundred feet from his
own residence. Although the Hinkley house is long gone, the
granite boulder remains-alas, without the powderhouse. The
boulder can be found just off Route 148 near the present home
of James and Joella Ross. A brisk walk up a steep incline
brings one to the site. 1In the photo above Robert Burton,
president of the local historical society, is pictured with the
rock. He vividly remembers playing around it as a child and
being impressed by its giant size.



Goodridge Corner Schoolhouse-This red schoolhouse is the only
local school standing which is not a private residence. Built in
1868, it continued serving the community-off and on-until the
middle 1940s as both high school and grammar school. The lot and
the building on it then reverted to the donor, the Kenniston
Family, upon closure. In 1954 Kenneth Durrell sold the property
to Robert C. (Bud) Pratt of Hopkinton, Massachusetts. For many
years he and his friends enjoyed using the building as a hunting
camp. Now living in Montana, Bud still visits Industry. Be-
cause he wished to preserve the building as a historical spot,

he donated it to the Industry Historical Society earlier this
year (2003). The society intends to restore the building and

use it as a headquarters. A small museum will eventually be
installed and opened to the public for viewing at specified
times.
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The Villages and Jerusalem

West Mills-The Village of West Mills (originally West's Mills)
is named after Capt. Peter West, a carpenter, who built several
mills and a log cabin in its vicinity in the late 1790s. Capt.
West hailed from Martha's Vineyard, spending time in Farmington
and Hallowell before landing in Industry. His peers typed him
as intelligent but eccentric. William Allen, an early settler
in Industry, states in his history of the town that West be-
lieved in witchcraft and told Allen that he chalked a horseshoe
on his mill saw to break a spell cast upon it.

Despite his unusual character West was well thought of in town,
serving as selectman and treasurer after Industry was incorpo-
rated. 1In 1798 he was reputedly worth $800, a large sum for
that time. Land speculation a few years later left him almost
bankrupt. He died in 1828 in his 82nd year.

His son Squire Peter West built the two-story house pictured
below. Note the different traffic configuration of an earlier
time. The grass island bearing a sign marked "garage" is 1long
gone from the scene. Also of interest is the "horseless car-
riage" parked near the West house. The view is north, looking
toward New Vineyard.

ORI SOt i




The two photos shown here were shot around a century
ago. Above is a view of Shaw Hill Road from Four
Corners. Note the lumber piled to the left.

The bottom photo looks toward Four Corners from Shaw
Hill Road. The building further away is a grocery
store run by C.M. Hilton.
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This view of West Mills looking down the Shaw Hill Road toward
the village center was snapped around a hundred years ago.
Shirley Leeman's place is on the left. Across the stream in a
hollow on the left is Bea Soule's. The Leeman barn is to the
right. Lumber on the right is from the waterpower mill located
on the dam (photo in center of page).

This view of the Leeman house (bottom of page) was made into a
postcard. A message on its front carries a New Year's greeting
and is dated Dec. 30, 1913 by Annie M. Look. Note the pile of
wood and the clump of hollyhocks. Hattie Fish stands nearby.

Horece  Wesr Miers e, (18



BRea Soule stands in front of her store at Four Corners in the
early 1950s. Here she sold such diverse items as gasoline and
candy. The girl to the left is Sandy Spencer.

Four Corners
1990. The
store run by
Dot Soule is
at the far
right.
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Looking up the brook toward West Mills Center. The Hilton
Store is the third building from the left.

This photo offers a close-up view of a dam
on a brook running through West Mills.
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The former Lauriston A. Smith Library is now a
private home on the West Mills Road near the
Starks line.

In days gone by children enjoyed swimming in this
section of the brook between the bridge and the
mill dam.
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Allens Mills-James Gower ran the mills at the outlet of Clear-
water Pond for many years, thereby giving this section of New
Sharon the name of Gower's Mills. 1In 1813 residents there suc-
cessfully petitioned the Massachusetts General Court for Gower's
Mills to become part of the Town of Industry. The long distance
to New Sharon (six to seven miles), impassable roads plagued by
swvamps and bogs, and the friendly relations with nearby Industry
(also easily accessible) decided the court in favor of the
Gower's Mills residents' plea.

Around 1823 the Allen Brothers, Benjamin and Newman, purchased
the mills from Gower. Their efficient management increased
patronage of the mills, especially the grist mill. Thus, the
citizens decided to change the village name from Gower's Mills
to Allen's Mills (now known as Allens Mills).

A year before the Civil War broke out, several residents of
Allens Mills petitioned the state legislature (Maine became a
state in 1820.) to set off the village from Industry and annex
it to Farmington. This petition was unsuccessful mainly
because Farmington refused the offer.

This gazebo sits on the Shadagee Road side of Muddy
Brook and has been the site of several weddings.



The identities of the people in this trio of photos
are unknown. The lady in the upper photo at left is
standing near the Shadagee Road. Muddy Brook is
behind her. The man to her right stands on a dock
by Clearwater Pond. A garage sits in the background.
Below them a family sits on the front seat of a
covered wagon. Their costuming suggests they are on
their way to an event. This photo may have been
taken on the Savage Road. The time frame covered in
these pictures appears to have been in the first
jquarter of the twentieth century.
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A delivery truck (top) sits in the front yard of this
Spinney house on Shadagee Road in the 1920s. The tall
chimneys behind the house belong to a skewer mill.

Almon Spinney's workshop (constructed by him) (below) also
sat on the Shadagee Road. He spent many an hour building
boats here. Note the nearby lumberyard.
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Center: The Gold-
smith BRarber Shop
is to the left;
the Dean Garage
is to the right.

The
Oriole
Tea Room
(1eft)

Left: This
lakeside view
shows both the
garage (right)
and the grange
hall (left).
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The Oriole Tea Room-This establishment operated during the 1940s

under the management of Mrs. Carlton Watson Fogg (Jenny) of Madi-
son. She was an aunt to Sayward Hackett. During the summer the

Tea Room presented a general menu. While the Tea Room was open,

Jenny stayed with her sister Olive Watson Hutchinson in the house
next to Shorey Chapel.

Barber Shop-Willis Goldsmith operated a barber shop across from
the Robbins homestead during the 1930s and 1940s. It also
housed a pool room. There are still people in the area who
-retain fond memories of whiling away hours there even if they
sometimes had to retrieve errant cue balls out of the brook.

Garages-George Dean ran a garage next to the barber shop. Across
from it sat another garage originally built by Frank True. The
flagpole in front of that establishment was constructed by Almon
I. Spinney (opposite page).

Eventually Barney Durrell bought the place. When he and Charlotte

were first married they ran dances there as had been the case
earlier. The entertainment was held on the upper floor in the
"Clearwater Ballroom." A five-piece band provided music and
George Lake called the sguare dances. After a while they gave

up this activity as they "only made enough to pay for the music."

George Gilbert took over this garage for a while before he moved
to the former Leslie Taylor Garage on the corner by Shorey
Chapel. Arthur St. Clair also oversaw auto repairs here.

Later the garage turned into a store (first floor) with upstair
apartments. Customers could purchase a variety of goods or rent
tapes. Store signs have carried such names as Clearwater
Variety, Y Bob's, and The Ugly Moose (its current designation).
Managers have included Peter Beane, Trudy Nutting, Justin and
Leiza Scerbo, and Gary and Denise Smith (present owners).

George Gilbert's Garage was once
owned and operated as a filling
station by Leslie Taylor.
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Gilbert Durrell, an unidentified man, Barney Dur-
rell, and Clarence Watson are shown outside Dur-
rell's Garage in this 1964 photo. (above)

Nearly 40 years later Durrell's Garage has changed into
a variety store named The Ugly Moose. (below)
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This Industry Town Hall replaces the building (a former
auction hall) that collapsed under the weight of ice and
snow in the late 1990s. Photo taken 2003 (above).

Industry Public Works vehicles line up in front of the Town
Garage near the Town Hall. The Industry Volunteer Fire De-
partment donated this former home to the town. Photo taken

2003 (below).




Photos: (Top left): Leland and
Doris Barker house (now owned
by Fran and Ken Brann)

(Top right): Kent Rackliff house.
Kent was a longtime minister at
Shorey Chapel.

(Right): The George Millett house
on the Shadagee Road.

(Relow left): The photo of this unidentified saw mill in Allens
Mills was taken in August 1918.

(Bottom right): No date is available for this photo of a Fourth
of July celebration in Allens Mills. The patriotically deco-
rated wagon carries a number of women sporting banners bearing
names of various states. During this period of town history,
residents celebrated the Fourth of July with great enthusiasm and
considered it one of the biggest events of the year.
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Clarence Watson
lived in the

house above for
many years. Nancy
and Bill Johnson
now call it home.

center): Half a century ago Win
Tolman ran a grocery store in Allens

(Above

Mills. Craig and Karen Schuler now live

here.

(Left): Xathryn Spinney sits on the rocks
near Clearwater Pond.
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Looking from Collins Corner
toward Jerusalem in 1920.

Jerusalem-The community of Jerusalem disappeared around World
War I. Located north of Collins Corner at the intersection of
Federal Row and the West Mills Road, Jerusalem was once home
to businesses, mills, families, cemeteries, and schools. 1In
1920 Mrs. E. Doyon taught four pupils during the nine-week
winter term at the Jerusalem School.

Commercial work was offered by Henry Oliver's apple canning op-
eration (Almon Watson's parents met there), mills (saw and grist
variety) and mining (potash and silver). The latter could be
marginal because of processing costs.

In 1861 School District No. 11 served students in the northwest
corner of Industry. Jerusalem offered burial in several ceme-
teries, including Lewis, Pinkham, Joseph Smith, and Luce.

These 1920 photos of Jerusalem were taken by members of the Col-
lins Family who lived in the family homestead at Collins Corner.
Joe Collins died in 1852 and his daughter Ruby in 1983.

At one time the houses of Jerusalem (above) were more prosperous
looking. Herbert Boardman's farm in the early quarter of the
nineteenth century was considered outstanding. It was later
taken over by the Fish Family.
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Ruby and Joe Collins are
shown at their Collins
Corner home (left). Be-
hind them the land is
clear toward Jerusalem.
The present Sam Gordon
house is close to the site
of the Henry Oliver apple
canning operation.

Sguares are stacked high
at this Jerusalem mill.
One sawmill sat on Fish
Brook. John Rackliff
operated a long board
sawmill in Jerusalem.
The Orcutt Mill bought
its eguipment when the
Rackliff Mill folded.

Many trees provide a rustic
setting for this example of
housing in Jerusalem in 1920.




Community Services

Post Office-The photo below shows the site of the last post of-
fice in Industry. Today the property is owned by Barbara and
Teddy Nutting of West Mills. Olan and Lottie Collins operated a
variety store and sold gas. A small building near Route 148
served as post office until the middle 1930s.

Andrew Fmery (right) delivered
mail in Industry when the carrier
had to travel to Farmington to
meet the train to pick up the
mail. He then returned to In-
dustry to carry out his job.
Here he is, togged out for duty
complete with satchel and bag.
Emery also served as school
superintendent and school bus
driver, using a regular passen-
ger vehicle to transport
scholars.

(Page 41): Rose Spinney is com-
missioned as Allens Mills post-
mistress in 1896.

40



41

’
i

o }f s Jﬁ""‘%““‘““ e //méa”
o midm | St /5 g

| /@//;,, = 4,,,,,1,,/4; i 0 13
Flow hnow ge, < ,,/am/aa i fu{} ,//?4, m//am/m/é, ,/% scacid J\&;u ,,zmm,@ 3
S s commision Kor & Pistimastes, acdlossiod b cxoosts s didis off Bt Qffe a2 hesr Wl
afbtcacd, mw,;, & G liraa of e (Qpuctied Sllls and e Hgudadions of Gie Gost Qfice Gfrastinend;
Lo bolld 2o seid Qe /%A”,¢¢ sl e /mw S L sl Gl e //7 2,

W/ 7 fze }/fz’ QWW eriial /4& Qe Sl

. Qfd,«. @ &»ﬁ@m@w P @fﬂ. A /M B e
& }}Mw mg,-m ..z/a: of'.zm ,/a; @.wm e one .@W.,./ reensy




Telephone Service-By the

late 1890s phone service had
reached Industry. Shown
above is the first telephone
office in Allens Mills, 1lo-
cated in the Sginney resi-
dence on Shadagee Road. J.C.
Spinney was the agent for the
Franklin Telephone & Tele-
graph Co. in Allens Mills;
J.M. Norton performed those
duties in West Mills.

Lawrence Spinney (above)
shows off his hunting skills.

Farly telephone eguipment is
shown to the left. The
Franklin Telephone & Tele-

graph Co. promised direct con-

nections with the following
companies: Madison, New

Sharon and Norridgewock, and
New Portland and Farmington.
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Fire Department-Until 1975 Industry citizens had to call upon
Farmington for fire help. Certain residents in the West Mills
area felt better protection could be had if a volunteer depart-
ment was formed. Harold Nutting, Sayward Hackett, and Bob
Burton spearheaded the effort. 1In February of that year the
West Mills Volunteer Fire Department was born. Members included
Clarence (Buster) Nutting, Jr. (fire chief), Gordon Probert
(deputy fire chief), Bob Burton (secretary), Sayward Hackett
(president), Bob Witherly, Curtis Moody, Donald Rackliff, and
Milton Phillips (treasurer). A ladies auxiliary and junior
firefighters (Reggie Rackliff chief) were also formed.

Money for training and eguipment was raised through a variety

of means: donations, suppers, and dances at the West Mills

Grange Hall. 1In March 1975 the group had appropriated $1,500
which was expended on a 1932 Mack fire truck. Features included

a 500-gallon water tank and dual ignition. If one electric

system failed, the second system could be activated. Sayward
Hackett and Harold Nutting traveled to a spot on the Vermont-New
York line. Sayward remembers that the drive back in the open
truck was "colder than blazes." Wearing every jacket he had,

he could not alleviate the feeling that he was slowly freezing ug.

The new engine was housed in Buster Nutting's garage. Through
reliance on a siren, CB, and telephone calls (made by Jean Nut-
ting), the new fire department answered alarms usually within

10 minutes. Most fires fought were of the chimney variety. Bob
Burton and Sayward Hackett pinpoint the fire at Esther Kyes'
home on Route 43 as the worst they encountered. Even calling
upon Farming fire assistance could not save the structure.

The West Mills Volunteer Fire Department served all of Industry
and had mutual aid with Anson, Starks, and New Sharon. Fire-
fighters of all ages (including the juniors) trained "every
couple of weeks." Some members, including Gordon Probert and
Bob Burton (EMT) were certified. A few years later the vol-
unteers donated their eguipment to the town and the Industry
Volunteer Fire Department came into being.

Photos on page 44 show West Mills Volunteer Fire Department mem-
bers clustered about their new truck (top photo). Below it is a
photo of the new fire house on the West Mills Road. The current
fire department moved into it last year. The old firehouse in
Allens Mills was donated to the Industry Public Works for a town
garage. This year town citizens voted to accept transfer of the
Industry Fire and Rescue Corporation's land and other assets.
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Commerce

. The S-E-S Mill sat on the south side of the West Mills
Road near Benson Brook in this photo taken around 1920.

The S-E-S Mill-Located about a mile west of West Mills Village,
the S-E-S Manufacturing Company, Inc. made skewers, dowels, and
other wooden goods. Four cabins across the road provided homes
for the workers. After the mill folded, one of the homes was
moved farther up the road.

The mill's name derived from the initials of the last names of
its three directors: Almon I. Spinney (treasurer), Andrew S.
Emery (president), and Andrew Gordon Spinney. Del Spinney acted
as the boiler fireman. He used to wet thin boards and bend them
to make skis for area children who then glided around the teams
of horses standing in the yard.

Almon Spinney modified a skewer pointing machine for use in his



and other local mills. The skewers produced in the S-E-S Mill
were both pointed and non-pointed (the latter for use in candy).
Retween 10 and 15 women packed skewers in long crates some of
which were shipred to England (for use with mutton). All

packed skewers pointed the same way; bad ones were thrown out.

About the same number of male employees worked at non-packing
jobs in the mill.

Farmers, including neighbkor Alfred Sjostrom, and others supplied
wood to the mill. Horse-drawn teams distributed mill products
to shipping points.

(R N (98

INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF ()

e
AP

S-E-S Manufacturing Company stock certificate issued
in 1917. At this time company capital stock was
valued at $10,000. (above)

Photos on page 47: (top) Skewer pointing machine modification
patent petition by Almon Spinney; (bottom) Lumber supply con-
tract agreement between Alfred Sjostrom and Almon I. Spinney.



Petition

Bour Petitioner_sinon 1. Spianey

of tha United States

Residing at Farmington

in the County of_Franklin

State of Maina
R 2- Parmington, Maine
pray 8__that Letters Patent may be granted to.
= _SKEWER POINTINGS

; L SPECIFI‘GA%ON-*
Co AN i’bm’n :t ﬂnp (nnmn SED B e el
BE IT KNOWN That__ I, Almon I. Spinney

Alfred Sjostrom of Industry, Maine, party of the
first part, and Almon I, Spinney of Industry, Maine, party
of the second part, agree as follows, to wit:

Said Sjostrom hereby sells all the hard wood puitable
for skewer lumber on the premises cenyeyed to said Sjostrom
by Benjamin Look May 14, 1920, excepting the lumber on the
cedar swamp which he has already sold to said Spimney. Said
Sjostrom agrees to cut and haul the some to the mill of esaid
Spinney.

Snid Spinney ngrees to pay said Sjostrom for said
hard wood lumber on said Look place suitable for skewers the
going price for said skewer lumber at the mill when delivered.

In case said Sjostrom is unable to cut and deliver

said lunber as said Spinney wants it then said Spinney is to

have the right to out and haul said nard Mood.luuler Auitablte..

for skewers to the mill operated by said Spiimey and is to
pay said Sjostrom the going price for said above described
lumber at the mill at the time of delivery less the outting

W W‘/
Party of the Fi¥st Par

Executed in Duplicate. a

AT .........
Party ot Second

In witness whereof the parties hereunto set their hands

and hauling charges.

AnAd manle thia 14+4h Aaw Af aw 109N
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The Watson Mill-Lincoln, Scott, and Elbridge Rand founded a mill
in Anson when horses were still a staple of lumbering. Scott
worked in the woods while the other two brothers ran the mill.
The complex included a cook house, bunk house, stable, and a long
lumber house, all situated off the Greenleaf Road by Caswell
Mountain because the lumber was there. 1In the 1930s a cord of
wood was worth $1.50 and a good day's work netted three cords. A
man and a team might make $4 a day. Horse size ran between 1,600
and 1,800 pounds.

Eventually, the Rand Mill changed hands. Bill Goodwin of North
Anson took only the boxes (fish and apple) before he sold the
rest of the mill to Almon Watson.

On October 1, 1947 the former Rand Mill was broken down and
moved to its present location on the Rand Road in Industry
because it was now easier to truck in and out on a main road.
To get to the Caswell Mountain cutting area, workers had to
walk into it in the spring.

Only the steam boiler was not moved to its new location as it

Workers enjoy a break from routine at the Rand Mill in Anson.



too% too many employees (three day workers and a night watchman)
to care for it. The mill now changed to diesel power.

At one time the mill employed between 20 and 30 workers in both
the mill and the woods. Presently, a half dozen employees do

the work as wood is secured from suppliers. Almon Watson retired
several years ago to be replaced by his son Elbridge (Buddy) as
manager of the Watson Mill in the West Mills end of town.

Seven Rand
Rrothers
(right): back:
Lincoln,
Charles, Sam;
front: George,
Scott, Carl-
ton, Elbridge.
c. 1920.

Watson Mill
2003
(1eft)
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Ostrich Farm-Exotic crea-
tures seldom seen outside
of movies or zoos trot
around the pens behind
Rick Brown's house on

the West Mills Road.

Ostriches are native to
South Africa but have be-
come popular in the United
States; Alaska raises the
most of these birds. They
are not inexpensive. A
tcp breeding pair can

cost many thousands of
dollars.

These very large birds
come in three colors:
blue, red, and black (the
calmest variety). Some grow nine feet tall and weigh 500 pounds.
A kXick from an ostrich can do lethal damage. They are also
faster than they 1look, being able to sustain 50 miles per hour
for 30 minutes straight.

Their meat is red, low in cholesterol, and tastes like beef.
Their eggs can be decorated (Rick Brown's wife is talented at
deing this). One ostrich yolk equals two dozen chicken yolks.

Photos: (top) Big Al and
Clucker enjoy a sunny day

as they move around in their
pen.

(bottom): These young os-
triches il1 soon grow into
big birds.
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Harrison Daggett was a postmaster, town clerk,
and treasurer of Industry as well as proprietor

of a general store.
the Town of Industry.
changed in 111 years.

The order above is drawn on
Notice how prices have
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Churches

The Baptists were the earliest organized sect in Industry with
the first sermon given in 1794. The first Congregational meet-
ing was in 1797; in 1831 the Benjamin and Henry B. Rackliff
families organized the Free Will Baptists. Methodist ministers
Rev. Enoch Mudge and Elias Hull preached in the Gore area in
1795.

For many years there were no public houses of worship in Industry.
Meetings lead by local or circuit preachers were held in private
homes or schoolhouses.

In 1823 a church was constructed near Pike's Corner on the road
leading to Thompson's Bridge. Capt. John Thompson supervised
the effort, contributing both labor and materials. In fact, it
was in his mill that the logs used for construction were sawed.
This house of worship was thus called the Thompson Meetinghouse
or occasionally the Red Meetinghouse for its exterior color.

It survived until the early 1870s when it was sold, moved to
Goodridge Corner, and turned into a cheese factory.

In the late 1820s a pair of
meetinghouses were built in
West Mills and the town
center. The former was
constructed on the West
Mills Road near the pres-
ent home of Joseph Para-
dis, Jr. at a cost of
$918,25, exclusive of
plastering expenses.

(Right): Longtime deacon and
church janitor Richard (Red)
Morrill stands in the door-
way of Shorey Chapel. Many
couples who are not affili-
ated with the church are
married in it because of

its interior beauty.
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The Center Meetinghouse, as the latter bhuilding was called, of-
ten doubled as a voting area and served for many years. By
World War II it was in a state of collapse and was allowed to
deteriorate until no visible sign of it remains on Route 148.

The West Mills Churches-The second of the two churches bhuilt in
the late 1820s was erected on the present Rand Road a short
distance up from Four Corners. A few years later a parsonage
was put up across the road from the new Union Church which
served a Methodist Episcopal congregation.

On the evening of Aug. 26, 1881 a fire started in a nearby barn
owned by John Willis. It soon engulfed connecting buildings,
the Willis stable, and the Union Church. The latter was com-
pPletely destroyed except for its bell which was installed

in its successor building.

A lack of funds stymied rebuilding efforts until the Rev. John
R. Masterman arrived in West Mills. He soon initiated fund-
raising for construction of a new church building. A 1lot on
present Route 148 was deeded from James Oliver to the Methodist
Society. Samuel C. Rand dug and stoned the cellar. Edward A.
Maxim of Madison built the tower and oversaw the finishing of
the outside. More fund-raising allowed the interior to be com-
pleted. Dedication services took place on Feb. 11, 1890

West Mills
Church

C. 1900
People and
reason for
photo not
known.




West Mills
Community
Church
1992.

The West Mills Church was reorganized by Presbyterians on Sept.
9, 1951 and deeded over by the Methodists on Aug. 9, 1955. The
church burned down on Aug. 28, 1973 at 4 a.m. when lightning
struck its steeple during a thunderstorm. It was rebuilt as the
present West Mills Community

"] Church in the summer of 1974

| by volunteer labhor and do-

| nated materials. No mort-

|  gage was taken on. The first

. service was held in the
church basement on Oct. 27,
1974.

This church is one of 14

Maine Presbyterian churches

Il composing the Mission at the

| Eastward. For several years

| until March 2003 it housed the
| Food Closet of the Mills.

i

%ﬁ

used to produce this card for

18891373 fund-raising purposes.

Lo mueity Chureh of West Mills,Maine

(Left): An old church photo was
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Two more clusters of people posé near the West Mills
Church possibly early in the twentieth century. The
top photo may be of a Sunday School group.




Shorey
Chapel
2003.

Shorey Chapel-A daughter's need to memorialize her deceased
parents created Shorey Chapel. For too long citizens of Allens
Mills had yearned for a house of public worship. The brick
school near Muddy Brook and private homes served this function
for many years.

In the summer of 1890 Elizabeth Shorey Price visited Industry,
observed this lack of church building and suggested erecting

a chapel with a connecting room for temperance meetings. A
fund-raising committee was soon set up. D. Collins Luce and

his wife donated a lot of land. When two key fund-raisers

died, Mrs. Price took over the expenses and management of build-
ing the church.

Frederick Thompson of Portland drew up plans and Noyes William-
son of Farmington began the construction. Mrs. Price oversaw
every detail from the hanging of the 720-pound bell in the tower
to the appointments for the 150-seat auditorium.

The finished building was dedicated on Nov. 10, 1891 as a memo-
rial to Pelatiah and Sarah (Fogg) Shorey.

Since its beginning many ministers have preached in Shorey
Chapel. Membership fluctuated. Sometimes services were held
monthly or only in the summer. As times grew harder for the
church repairs were rarely performed. By August 1962 member-
ship in the Chapel had dwindled to eight individuals.
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The Rev. John Tolman (right)
conducts a baptism in Clear-
water Pond in October 2000.

Leslie Taylor, the Chapel's only male member sent out an S.0.S.
for a pastor to the Franklin Association of Congregational
Churches, United Church of Christ. Harland C. Abbott, an admin-
istrator at Farmington State Teachers College (now the University
of Maine at Farmington) was dispatched to serve wherever the
Chapel wished. Association churches sent laymen and laywomen

to lead services. Florence Fogg was installed as organist, the
Sunday School was reorganized, and Shorey Chapel repaired and
renovated through gifts and donations.

Since then a rest room and handicapped railing have been in-
stalled, the kitchen modernized, and the Sunday School area
enlarged.

The Rev. John Tolman recently retired after 31 years of ser-
vice to Shorey Chapel. He and his wife Jane are shown in the
photo below.




The Rev. John
Tolman leads
a service in
Shorey Chapel.

Rev. John Tolman-John intended to take over the family farm in
New Sharon but an allergy to cows forced him to shift careers.
After receiving his divinity degree, John sermonized at churches
in Farmington Falls, Smithfield, Greenville, Shirley Mills,
Rockwood, Jackman, Oxford, and Otisfield.

For a while he was part of a senior-assistant pastor team working
for the Franklin Larger Parish with churches in Carthage, Phillips,
Weld, and Industry. Each member of the team took two churches a
week and then swapped. Since most of the churches in which John
preached were small, two of them would be yoked together.

John found time to teach as well as preach. He earned a master's
degree in education from UMF and taught in western Maine towns.
Eventually, he established his own school (Morningstar Academy)
in New Sharon . Flood waters in 1987 finished off this venture.

At the Franklin County Jail John counseled inmates, provided
bible instruction, and offered reading assistance.

During World War II John did air force duty in North Africa.

Most of John's pastoral time was spent in the shared ministry
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of the New Sharon Congregational Church and Industry's own Shorey
Chapel. John served the latter for 31 years. Marcia Charles
succeeded him as pastor of the Chapel.

John has heen officially retired for over a year. Nevertheless,
he continues to preach every Sunday at a Jackman church. He
even spent three months (along with wife Jane) giving sermons

at the Christ Church in Maracaibo, Venezuela.

Farming is still important to John. 1In the past he raised a
number of animals, including rabbits and guinea hens. He now
concentrates on the care of Katahdin (lack wool) sheep.

Younger members of the Shorey
Chapel congregation partici-
pate in a Christmas program.

Christmas is enjoyed by the
Shorey Chapel faithful. Left
to right: (Back row): Glenn
Heath, ? , Loueen Hobbs,
Richard Morrill, Margaret
Heath, Peg Morrill, Bob Healy,
Fran Brann. (Front row): Lois
Greenleaf, Jane Tolman, Liz
Kerr, Rachel Danforth, Rev.
John Tolman, Charlotte Dur-
rell, and Craigen Healy.




Schools

Before Industry's incorporation in 1803 a few children were tu-
tored in their homes in reading and spelling. The first school-
house was erected in the Gore region (date unknown). After it
burned, it was replaced by a nearby building. School districts
were formed in different parts of the town. From time to time
the boundaries changed depending on prevailing attitudes and
scholar population. Some schools were kept in private homes.

The second schoolhouse in Industry was built near Davis Corner
(now Goodridge Corner) in 1807. It was torn down in 1818. Ry
the Civil War there were 13 town school districts. In 1903 nine
district schools served 169 students. At the end of World War II
schools operated only in the two villages. Twenty years later
Industry was part of School Administrative District 9 and all
its students attended schools in Farmington.

Scholars line up ky the Head of the La%e School in
this 1897 photo. The young lady sixth from the
right (front row) is Julia Spinney.

Head of the Lake School-During its history this school moved

three times either on or near Federal Row. Originally (1812), it

sat on land across from the Daniel Luce Farm (now owned by Mark
and Nancy Prentiss). 1In 1828 the school moved onto the Luce
Farm. Parent complaints for several years finally changed
district boundaries. The town ordered that the schoolhouse be
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torn down, moved, and reassembled in a smaller version on the
corner of Federal Row and the present Sinkinson Road

In 1909 the superintendent of schools' annual report notes that
attendance at the school was so small that pupils went to it for
only one term. Otherwise, they were transported to the Union
School on the West Mills Road.

Charlotte Robhins, flanked by
her brothers, stands near the
Withee Corner School (right).

The Withee Corner School-Withee Corner is 1lo-
cated near the junction of the New Sharon
Road and the Industry Road. The first
schooling in that area was in a vacant log
house on land owned by Moses Tolman. The
following summer the school district erected
a schoolhouse on the corner.

In 1852 the town lost 1,600-plus acres to New
Sharon. Soon afterward a new schoolhouse was
constructed at Withee Corner at a cost of
$140. Hatch bhelieves that this sum probably
represented materials only as labor was
usually "contributed by interested parties."

In 1920 the Withee Corner School opened for each of its three
terms (spring, fall, and winter) and employed two different
teachers. Edna Keith taught one term; Mrs. Juliette R. Keith
instructed scholars for the other two. About seven pupils at-
tended each term which average ten weeks. Edna Keith was paid
$9 a weekx while Mrs. J.B. Keith earned $12 a week.

Superintendent of Schools F.J. McAuliffee received $175.86 for
overseeing the operation of all Industry schools (Rand, West
Mills, Allens Mills, Goodridge, Withee's,Union, and Jerusalem).
The superintendent reported to taxpayers that "Withee's is
doing excellent work" but needed better lighting to protect the
children's eyesight.



The Brick School-At Industry's annual town meeting held on
March 12, 1832 citizens voted to divide the Center School
District (Goodridge Corner School) and form one in the vil-
lage of Allens Mills. This new division was afterwards known
as District Number One.

The Brick School shown above was built either in the summer of
1839 cr the year after. It educated students at its Shadagee
Road location into the twentieth century.

The Allen Mills School-In December 1913 the town purchased a
lot off the Savage Road from Arthur Rackliff for $100. Here a
frame schoolhouse was erected as a successor to the nearby
Brick School.

Earl Ireland drilled a well on the school lot in 1957, the
first time a school became equipped with such a luxury. Two
rooms were also added onto the building.

In 1959 Industry became one of the first three area towns
(Chesterville and Farmington were the other two) to join SAD 9.
Students in grades five through eight were bussed to Farmington
to continue their education. Lower grade pupils received in-
struction at the Allens Mills School.

Five years later the last operating school in the Town of In-
dustry closed and all students traveled to Farmington to attend
classes. The former school is now a private home.
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Allens Mills School c. 1946 or 1947 (left to right): Front
Row: Douglas Frost, Maryann Jennings, Lois Frost, James
Ryder, Carolyn Wahl, Dale Fairbanks, Duane (Skip) Clark,
Earl Luce, and Carolyn Vanderhoff.

Second Row: Patricia Vanderhoff, Nancy Watson, Roger Ryder,
Harry Clark, and Donald Clark.

Third Row: Scott Tolman, Delmar Barker, Lewis Tracy, Arthur
Tracy, George Beale, Pauline Luce, and ? .

Fourth Row: Muriel Cochran, Colby Ryder, John Wahl, Jr.,
Courtney » and Donald Rackliff.

(On page 64): Top: Certificate of Promotion for Ted Tracy, Jr.

Bottom: Program for 8th grade graduation.
Teachers: Katherine Keef, Ruby Kyes.
Supt. of Schools: S.T. Marshall
Students of Allens Mills andéd Goodridge
Corner Grammar Schools-1943
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Ghis Qertiien, That
the Course of Study prescribed for

GRADUATING CLASS

Barbara Barker

Barbara Beale

Betty Rackliff

Theodore Tracy Jr.

Reginald Walker

"Invocation

PROGRAM

Processional

Kent Rackliff

The Nation's Need of Men
Barbara Beale

Song--America School

Nancy Theo. Tracy Jr.

Presentation of Seven Point Pins

Two Girls
Hothing But flags
Barbara Barker
Piano Soio Kent Rackliff
Billy's Rose Betty Rackliff
Song--There's A Star Spangled
Banner Waving Somewhere
Elizabeth Barker
A Plan For Permanent Peace
Reginald Walker
Presentation of Diplomas
Supt. S. T. Marshall
Recessional of Graduating Class
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Goodridge Corner School c. 1913 (left to right): Front Row:
Sylvia Wagner, Vernon Rackliff, Holmes Wagner; Back Row:
Joe Rackliff, Edgar Kyes, Edna Keith (teacher), Goldie Wagner.

The Goodridge Corner School-There have keen three schools in or
near Goodridge Corner. The first was built in 1807 about 100
rods (1,650 feet) north of the intersection of Routes 43 and
148; it was torn down in 1818.

Six years later a second school was erected on Davis Corner (the
name for Goodridge Corner in 1812) diagonally across from the
present abandoned school. A term for high school students was
offered at the school in 1832. This second school site was
later occupied by the Enterprise Cheese Factory.

The third and last school at Goodridge Corner was constructed

in 1868 for the sum of $685. After the enactment of the Free
High School Law of 1873, town selectmen and the school super-
visor decided to establish such a school at Goodridge Corner.
Freelan O. Stanley (one of the brothers who invented the Stanley
Steamer) of Kingfield taught the fall term. The effort proved
very successful. A second free high school term was held at

the school in 1883.



Goodridge Corner School is mainly remembered as a grammar school
of eight grades. Ages of scholars attending could range from
five to 20 as many boys had to skip terms to work at home on the
farms. The school day lasted from 8:30 a.m. to 3:30 p.m. Sub-
jects taught included the 3 Rs, grammar, history, and geography.

On Friday afternoons the Goodridge Corner School Improvement
League (statewide organization) met. This group consisted of
students and some adults (usually teacher). At these meetings
business was discussed, a collection taken, and entertainment
might be presented. Out of its treasury the group would some-
times buy items for the school such as books, a clock, or a
croquet set.

Many former students remember the huge stove (still there) in
the school, the pail of drinking water, and the bright Alad-
din's lamp.

The janitor (often a student) cut the wood, started and banked
the fire, and got the water. Buddy Kyes held that job when
his mother Ruby taught there. 1In 1943 his uncle installed
electricity in the schoolhouse.

The school closed in the middle 1940s and reverted to its donor
the Kenniston Family. In 1954 Robert C. (Bud) Pratt of Hopkin-
ton, Mass. purchased it. Forty nine years later he donated it
to the Industry Historical Society.
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Photos: (Opposite): Goodridge Corner School, December 1916. Back:
Mrs. Juliette Keith (teacher), ? , ? , Sylvia Wagner, Ella Spencer,
Goldie Wagner, ? . Middle: Kenneth Durrell (white shirt), Nora
Rackliff, Edgar Kyes, Lucien Kenniston, May Drew. Front: Holmes
Wagner, ? , Ellery Rackliff (white shirt), ? ? Ruby Wagner.

: ’ H ’

(Below): Secretary's report for the June 22, 1917 meeting
of the Goodridge Corner School Improvement League.




Goodridge
Corner
School
1943.

(Above): Rack: Frank Beale, John Rackliff, Harold

(Buddy) KXyes, Reginald Walker. Front: George Beale,

Carroll Ryder, Donald Rackliff. Teacher (not pres-

ent) is Ruby Kyes.

(Below): Back: Marilyn Packard, Barbara Beale, Betty

Rackliff, Shirley Claflin. Front: Jackie Burton,

BRana Rackliff, and Janet Walker.
Goodridge
Corner
School

1943
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The West Mills Grammar School was eguipped with a bell
tower. A woodshed was later added on the building.

The West Mills Schools-The first school in the vicinity of West
Mills was built around 1812 and later served as many as 70
scholars during winter terms. 1In 1823 the district was divided
into one serving West Mills and a second educating students in
what was called the Esguire Shaw District. The old schoolhouse
which had stood to the north of the Shaw Farm was now moved to
the south of that place (District No. 5 in 1861).

The first term of high school education opened in West Mills in
1832 and was taught by a student from Waterville College. Two
years later a high school opened in the new brick schoolhouse

in the village. After the Free High School Law was enacted on
Feb. 24, 1873, the town appropriated $150 for such schools. Two
of these schools opened, one bteing located at West Mills. It
was favorably received, being the first of several intermittent
terms.

In 1910 a frame school on the Rand Road was built. 1In her report
to the town Supt. of Schools Juliette B. Keith (also a teacher at
the Withee Corner School) listed two schools for West Mills:
Grammar (grades 5-8) and Primary (grades 1-4). She reported

that so few students lived in the district that both schools'
students had to be combined under one teacher for the spring
term.



Etta Hamlin (left) is shown at the
West Mills Grammar School with two
of her students, Harley Oliver
(middle) and Priscilla Cain
(right) around 1929. Miss

Hamlin was considered very strict
by her charges.

Priscilla Cain remembers the
teachers at West Mills boarding
at the home of Marvin Luce. She
also recalls that the janitor got
water at the Charles Oliver resi-
dence.

Students sometimes participated in school bands. They used no
music and relied on simple instruments such as the triangle and
sticks to beat out rhythms to songs like "Jingle Bells."

Sayward Hackett graduated from the West Mills Grammar School in
1949. One of his teachers was Ruth Wing. During his seventh
and eighth grade years he acted as janitor, a service for which
he earned $3 weekly. His duties included starting and banking
the fire and getting water.

The West Mills School closed in 1957. The 40 or so students
served by this school were bussed across town to the Allens
Mills School. The former school is now a private home.

Before the school closed eighth grade graduation class exercises
were held in the West Mills Grange Hall on Route 148. A portion
of a program for the Class of 1915 is shown on the opposite
page. Twelve students received diplomas on this occasion.
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Graduation exercises for the 1915 eighth grade class at West

Mills were held on Thursday Jube 24,

Hall.

1915 at the local Grange

The class motto was "Knowledge is Power."

Class colors were green and white.

Class members:
Elsie Stewart, Burton Chapman,

Ruth Fish, Gladys Lovejoy, Florence Collins,
Lester Kyes, Franklin Patterson,

William Sanford, Eva Fickett, Carl Goodridge, Edith Wilkins,

and Alta Love.

The program for the graduation exercises:
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West Mills School c. 1927. (left to right): Back Row: Eunice
Bowie (teacher), Linwood Kennedy, ? , Lawrence Tuscan, Colby
Cain. Middle Row: Lucille Tuscan, Vivian Norton, Dorothy
Watson, Erland Robbins, Marian Luce. Front Row: Helen Ken-
nedy, Priscilla Cain, Almon Watson, Harley Oliver, _
Robbins, Tracy Cain, Howard Watson (boy numbered one).

West Mills School c. 1931. (left to right) Front Row: Charlene
Oliver, ? , Gladys Oliver, Alice Spinney, Crocker,
Lester Watson, Russell Robbins, Jr., Gordon Collins (Howard
Watson kehind). Middls Row: Tracy Cain, Almon Watson, Pris-
cilla Cain, Erland Robbins, Vivian Norton, Helen Kennedy,

Hildreth Doble. Back Row: Harley Oliver, Colby Cain, ? , Cyrus
Collins.
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Dot (left) and Jackie
Burton pose with a deer
shot by Dot's husband
Tom. Their dog Chummie
sits in front of them.

Behind the group is a
passenger vehicle used
as a school bus. During
the 1930s and 1940s Ton
and Dot transported In-
dustry students to town
schools.

In 1958 Grade 8 gradu-
ation exercises were
held in the Allens
Mills Grange Hall.
(left to right):
JoAnne Hackett, Free-
man Chick, Chester
(Bud) Kennedy, Car-
mellita Buzzell, Lin-
wood Luce, Delmont
(Delly) Hutchinson,
Donna Fairbanks.

Bana Rackliff (teacher)
is seated back to the
camera.

The following pages carry examples of paperwork generated by
the Industry School System.

Page 74 features a catalog for the West (note spelling) Mills
Free High School during the 1880 fall term. Adelbert 0. Fred-
eric acted as principal while Sara E. Norton held the post of
assistant pupil. Adelaide A. Manter, Cleveland W. Perkins, and
Holmes H. Bailey made up the school committee.

The catalog lists male (gentlemen) and female (ladies) students
separately. Courses of study, grades in those studies plus
days in attendance, and marks for deportment (behavior) are
also given.
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Gafatogue and Huerage Rank off Hg:ﬁmm.,

S Shensia e d
SHC R Y T
Burns, Ward, 90 So 33
Daggett, Hiram, 78 28
Fish, Charles R., 88 9o 0o 338
Hatch, Geo. Milton, 98 95 97 95 40
Johnson, Henry, 88 94 30
Luce, Frank C., 93 50
Norton, David M., 2 99 40
Norton, Reuel B., ; 49
Oliver, Charles F., 97 90 05.. 597 15
Patterson, George W, 36
Pinkham, Samuel E., 75 39
Pinkham, Rufus F., 90 45
Rackliff, Samuel, 90 03 48
Smith, Fred W, 85 50
Stevens, Fred Hn.. 88 50
/iles, Charles M., 8o 8o 39
/iles, George W., 2
Watson, Orrin W, 87 47
Watson, Eugene S., 90 40
Wilson, Charles A.. 94 32

Total, 20.

Deportnient.

100
100
100
100
99
100
100
90
100
90
90
93
100
95
92
97
90
90
98
92

Catatoque and Huerane Rank of

[LADIES.

Daggett, Ella,
Daggett, Iimma,
Daggett, Anna,
Frederic, Frances E.,
Luce, Annie M.,
Luce, Leonora B.,
Norton, Sara E.,
Norton, Emily M.,
Norton, Carrie L.,
Norton, Frankie A.,
Norton, Amy A.,
Norton, Ellen S.,
Norton, Clara E.,
Perry, Etta M.,
Perry, Nora w.;
Pinkham, Bertha M.,
Pinkham, Maria R.,
Stevens, Nellie B,
Viles, Alma H.,
Watson, Ellen A,

Zotal, 20.

Algebra.

£ 73 5 2

- of Fgk

88

73

97

96

88 9o 95 9o

88 9o 00
95 95 96 90

93 388

97 90

93 86

90

78

95

98 95

87 86 9o

98

Whole number, yo.

5

Lhvsiology.

94

9o

:émm.

Days
Attendance.

o G
0 =~ w

49
46
49
44
50
50
48
50
10

46

44
mo

50
35
39

Depoitment.

100

95
97

100
100
100

100

92

100
100

I00

99
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Flora Spinney lived on Federal Row at the Stetson Farm (now the
Prentiss Place) when she attended the Union School in 1909. The
school year then ran on a cycle of February to February, heginning
with the spring term. The closest school to Flora's home, the Head
of the Lake School had closed for lack of sufficient pupil numbers.
Flora had the same teacher for all three terms, Torrey Merrill.

The Union School was situated on the West Mills Road below the
present Osborn Farm (opposite side). It was the third such
building on this site. The first had been moved from North
Industry and was eventually sold. The second burned in 1861,
necessitating that pupils be educated in private homes and a

shoe shop (for one term). The building in which Flora was taught
was built in 1864. It closed in the 1920s.

After Flora left school she became a pianist at local theaters,
providing background music to silent films.
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S By sections 60 and 61 of Chapter 11 of the Revised Statutes, as amended by Act approved February 23, 1876, 1
every School Agent is required to make to the Assessors and Superintending School Committee, in the month of
April, annually, under oath, certified lists of ‘*the children in bis district between four and twenty-one years of
age, as they existed ou the first day of said month, exclusive of those coming from other places, where they belong,

eyt to attend any college or academy, or to labor in any factory therein.” ~Agents will please notice that it is not
enough to give the number of scholars in their several districts, but a list of their names is required by law. .

L R B A Sy

I hereby certify, under oath, that the following is a correct list of the names of the scholars belonging to this .
District, between the ages of four and twenty-one years as they existed on the first day of April, 183 . - i

_ Agent of District No.... ...
(Siguedd) | i Lo Lol B v

i ' RN O AR SN ML B T

e T R

o o ‘.-l-r“:,,“.‘,’; ,«_': T
nd made oath to the above Certificate.

g o s ama b e

; 'i’ersonally PTYITTA: R SR
Justice of the Peace in

BefOTE I, ..o et

Lol ppotlee

i,

Samuel C. Rand was the
school agent for District
No. 9, located in North
Industry. The report
shown here is not com-
rleted (Rand has over-
written a student's

name and signed his

... own in the wrong place).
The report is probably
for the year 1883. Note
the wide spread of stu-
dent ages with most being
in their teenage years.

<

Pages 77 and 78 offer por-
tions of a 1907 register
¥ept by a teacher at the
Union School. Page 79 pro- .
vides a look into school :
ggending for the year 1902- .
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Teachers were required to keep attendance records at Industry
schools. Their registers listed student names, ages, times
absent, tardy or dismissed plus days attended. Perpendicular
lines indicated absences, an upright T tardiness, and an upside-
down T dismissal. Attendance was kept for both morning and
afternoon sessions. Horizontal lines drawn opposite student
names indicated either the student had not entered that school
at the beginning of term or had left it during the term. If a
student attended less than two weeks of school, he or she was
not included in the "whole number of scholars" category.

Deportment and scholarship were also ranked, using the numbers
one through ten with one indicating the lowest grade. Teachers
were encouraged to assess scholarship through heavily weighing
"the good efforts of the pupil so as not to discourage scholars
of moderate abilities."

If a teacher boarded with a family in the town, that board was
considered part of the teacher wages. At the end of each term
teachers were urged to make written reports of school conditions
and progress to their superintendent.



1. Nuame of the City, Town or Plantation, . . .

2. Nume or number of School, . . : : . " . o LN LL Y XL 0T T

3. Name of the teacher, . ‘ . 3 '. . . v . )?4/(/}/( nw?&c&%&%

4. Taught how many Schools before, . . . . . . R }7(/%& ...... AR S,

5. When the School commenced, . . . : ? 5 v e }/)ZLL{_, ,,,,, é‘éj»z/ ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

6. When the School closed, . . . . . . . . ol M’é&-@f’u/’b ,,,,,,,

7. When the School was visited by the Superintendent, . 2 . . }?j ?% a/}z‘ci W21e] k.

8. Length of the School in weeks, 5 days in a week, % 4 £ N

9. Whole number of scholars attending School, . . . . o T ) WJZ’(«M/’L/&/LQ

10.  Average number, : . : : . s - : ; SF b 1 R
11. Wages of Teachers per week,* . . : 2 : 3 d . ﬁ,m,c&,—&c’:z/w ,,,,,,,,,
12. How many instances of tardiness? . . . ’ : . . P2 Wy S
13.  How many instances of dismissal? . . : : : . RS
14. How many pupils not absent one-half day? . . " : § romevererndt I
15. Number of daily recitations, 2 e : : g : : S T X -
16.. Number of visits by Superintendent, . : . : . a : J-/L(/ﬂ' ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
17. Number of visits by citizens, ; : ’ ; . , TR P‘M ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
18. Reading; No. of classes in, ‘71 ,,,,, Whole No. of pupils in . /.l,. ..............................................................
19.  Spelling, SEE 5 Y SRR A L2
20. Penmanship, L A T ‘3 ....... o e e 9 ...............................................................
21. Arithwmetic, @, D8 WL \9 ...... ST L e 9 ..............................................................

22. Grammar, s \9 ...... g e Xr ...............................................................

23.  Geography, Bl L s /.. LI 3 ...............................................................
24, Composition, ¢ L L o
25. History, Yo mp oma / ........ W s ‘7l ................................................................
26. Physiology, % BE . / ........ ‘e 5( ...............................................................
27. Bookkeeping, ¢ .. E U VUSRS
28. Elements of Science, ... e e
29. Civics, e L e

30. IHow many have attended to other studies? If so, to what studies and
how many to each? 2 . : . : : : .
31. Is the School well furnished with text-books?

32. What globes, wall maps and charts, if any, belong to the School ?

33. Has the School a library? )} = How many volumes ? .
&
34. Was the teacber duly exumined and certificated as required by law? o X oA wa ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,
I hereby certify that this Register has been truly and faithfully kept as required Dy law and that all the

statements herein made are correct according to my best knowledge and belief.

Teacher of _%Mm“_School.

.......... ,d, AV ; Term.

*[n cases where the teachkr's board is pald by the town, the price of board per week should be added to the wages

of teacher per weck.
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SCHOOL REPORT.

’ .
I ARy RULRY &

SUPERINTENDING SCHOOL COMMITTEE, ' !

Orrin Leeman, term expires, 1903.
Ward Burns, term expires, 1904.
Eugene Smith, term expires, 19035.

To the Citizens of Industry:

k

The following is a rep6;t of the schools for the year, ,19Ao.2~—3:v_‘ ;
RESOURCES, " * ¢/ #3110 A
i Amount raised by town, AR o $442'4 ‘ ..T..'u;‘.--.,‘“
Received from State, . 468 41 U s
) Received from Farmington, . 20 65 3
Received for wood, from High =~ -
' School, 3 I 00
s Unexpended in 1901, 26 20 .
$ 958 66
Teachers’' wages, $924 00 :
Wood, 29 40
Conveying scholars, = ° - 49 20
' $1,002 6'0'
: ¢ Overdrawn, $43 94 - i

A portion of the school report for the year ending February 20,
1903 is shown above. Expenses not noted include a $34 payment
for education charts (due Sept. 1, 1903), $50.42 for books (out

of a $65 appropriation), and $37.38 for miscellaneous (supplies,
rentals, and express).

The Andrew S. Emery mentioned on page 80 is the Industry Supt. of
Schools submitting this report to town citizens.
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Tabular Statement.

i 8 E &3 E
& g0 & g o
. e 3§ - BR:i-F
a S Y8
SCHOOL. © TEACHER. .&. & ° - pw' /&,
s < ,ﬁ,-g%f A
s . ¥ g 8% 8
i Z - < A pgftEn
! (Allen’s Mills, May Rackliffe, 12 10  “I1 $450 = $49 50
< | Goodridge Corner, Cora Oliver, 8 68 8 450 3600
& | Head of Lake, Annie M. Seavey, 14 115 8 500 .. 40 00
. t | Withee Corner,. Hattie B. Leeman, 14 11 8 500! 40 00"
[ { Union, * Nina E. Backus, 12 10%% 8 500 4000
‘ £ | Johnson, Lenora M. Gilman, 3 5 8 4350 3600
% | Grammar, Perley L. Cole, 19 1544 "8 700 5600
& | Primary, Agnes Moulton, 20 18 ° 8 650" 552 00:%
* (Rand, Ella F. Titcomb, 7 68 8 45 3600 .
_ (Allen’s Mills, Ella M. Lowell, 13 P10 1275 4'50 . ,54 00’
= | Goodridge Corner, Cora E. Oliver, 8 % 12 50060 00:"
™ 4 . : A
w | Head of Lake, . * Annie M. Seavey, 13 g;;: I2 5§ 50 °.:66 00
& | Withee Corner,  Hattie B. Leeman, 13 1 12 . §:50%.% 66 00
e { Union, Ellen G. Withdm, 13 gi' 12 5 00 - 60 oo
E Johnson, ' Ina M. Lovejoy, 5 3 5 4504 2230
. Z | Grammar, Edith H. Hatch, 14 11§} 12 650" ‘' 78 00
2 | Primary, Agnes Moulton, 161712 12 6:50° 78 o0 -
( Rand, . Ella F. Titcomb, 7 SYs 12 - 4 50 5400 |
Number scholars in town, 169.
Respectfully ‘submitted, . . :
ANDREW S.-
3

In this 1903 school report to Industry taxpayers only two terms
are considered. Teachers were hired by the term in those days.
Students often had to get used to a new teacher (and he or she
to them) each term. Average student attendance is sometimes
fractional. Term length varied from school to school due to
illness (scarlet fever epidemics were not uncommon), building
conditions, taxpayer whim, funding, or teacher guality or
availability.
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Homesteads

The James Stanley Place-James Stanley settled on lot seven
(Lowell Strip) early in town history. Samuel Frost moved onto it
in 1835. His son Alonzo was horn in the house pictured below in
1843. This property was known as the Chase Farm, Charles Henry
True Farm, and the Hawes Place. Joseph F. Collins owned the farm
when this photo was taken (1944); it abutted his home lot on the
west. The house was then estimated to he between 135 to 140
years old. No one had lived in it since the winter of 1910.
Jason Proman presently owns this property.

Joseph
Collins
Place
(right).




The Joseph Collins Place-Several generations of Collinses called
this saltbox with attached shed and barn home. The photo shown
on page 81 was probably taken'in the 1930s. By the 1960s it had
really aged and fell in several years after the death of the last
Collins to live there (1983). Located at the corner of Federal
Row and West Mills Road at Collins Corner. (also known as Tib-
betts Corner and Roach's Corner).

Joe Collins (left)
Charles Norton
(right) 1950.

0l1ld classmates.

Joe Collins was considered a great talker. He had a reputation
for finishing conversations by jumping onto the running board

of a traveling automobile and talking all the time. During his
lifetime he was secretary for the Cottle Cemetery (He and family
members are buried there.) and town selectman. He traced his
ancestry back to the earliest settlers in the Gore region of
Industry and was a cousin to historian
William Collins Hatch.

Joe's daughter Ruby (left) was more

at home in the woods than she was in
the kxitchen. This 1944 photo shows

her with her shotgun at Mile Long Farm,
then a Prentiss summer home on Federal
Row. Ruby often worked here at various
jobs, including picking fruit. She was
very proud of bringing down game, es-
pecially deer, with her "Indian stick."
Ruby was known to pack a pistol. On
more than one occasion she fired it

off to scare away possible intruders
near her home.
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The Squire West House-The photo above was taken before the
disastrous 1920s West Mills Village fire which destroyed
several homes and businesses near the West House (building
on right of photo). Ron Gelinas ran a mineral business out
of this house several years ago. Note store to house's
left and snowbanks. Not shown in photo is a church hell
located on the edge of the West House lawn.

Shaw Farm.

The word Enter-
prise once ap-
peared over the
door but has been
painted over
sometime in the
past.




The Shaw Place-Located on the Shaw Hill Road, this farm was named
after the family that settled on it about 1811. Daniel Shaw
specialized in growing country produce., shipping it east to the
British Provinces. By 1835 he had accumulated the stupendous

sum of $10,000 but unwise land speculation left him financially
ruined. :

Sons Daniel and Albert purchased the family home and began farming
and lumbering operations. In 1851 Daniel sold out his share to
Albert and moved first to New York State and four years later to
Wisconsin. Albert remained in Industry, enlarged the family
homestead, and ventured into politics. In the latter field he
served as town selectman. town treasurer, and state legislator.

He also fared well in purchasing large land tracts. He died at
age 57 of typhoid fever.

More recently the farm has been inhabited by Joe Paradis, Sr. (as
a child), Sonya and Irving Cirks, Ellen Hutcheson, and (presently)
David and Beth Dorr and their children.

At one time John Jones, an insurance agent and state legislator,
owned the property. He continued to live in Farmington but
raised sheep at the farm for a hobby. John Scales helped him
out. Jones owned the first Ferguson Ford tractor in the area.

The Cirks remodeled the house, tore down the original barn, and

constructed two large sheds. 1Inside the house they installed
hand-hewn beams and "tightened up" the house. Irving Cirks ran
a surveying business out of the farm. "Sunny" worked as an

English instructor at UMF. In town affairs she became the first
woman to be elected as town selectman.

Ellen Hutcheson attracted a different sort of clientele, being
a counselor and therapist. She also found time to serve on the
town's planning board and enjoy her horses.

The Dorrs also have a horse, Muffin, and keep Brittany spaniels.
They had always admired the farm while they were living in Starks.
When it came on the market, they snapped it up. Sixty two acres
go with the house.

Shaw Hill Cemetery sits near the house at the edge of Shaw Hill
Road. Several Shaws are buried in it, including Albert Shaw
and his father Daniel.
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The porch on the Gilmore
House (left) was re-
moved in the 1970s.
Ferman Berner (local
auctioneer) and Bob
Burton and their fami-
lies lived in this

house on the Shaw Hill
Road in the 1960s and
1970s.

The Dewey Gilmore Place-Dewey Gilmore was a dairy farmer and town
official. At one time he possessed the only electric milking
machines in town. Sap from a grove of maple trees was processed

in a large sap berth (now a private home) across and down the road.

The Marian Jackson House-Singer-actor Rudy Vallee was one of many
celebrity friends to visit Marian Jackson at her Goodridge Corner
home.

Ronnie and Lois
Greenleaf now live
in the Jackson
House (left).
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The Spinney House
on Shadagee Road
at an earlier date
(left).

The Spinney House-Rose Spinney was appointed postmistress at
Allens Mills in 1896. Her house on the Shadagee Road served as
the village post office. It featured a letter slot. Business
was transacted in her living room.

Rose Gordon, daughter of Ithiel and Elvina Gordon of Phillips
married John Colby Spinney, a Civil War veteran, on Sept. 20,
1869 and lived well into the twentieth century.
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